
MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Town Council  

FROM:  David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE:  January 8, 2021 

SUBJECT:  Additional/Corrected Agenda Information – 1/12/2021 

I have received additional and clarifying information on the matter related to HVAC improvements at 
Fire Station #1 on Barton Hill Road.  I previously misunderstood the situation and this memorandum will 
attempt to clarify the matter.  In short, the Fire Department and I are requesting a waiver of the 
competitive bidding requirements of the Town Code as the most conservative way to handle work at the 
Fire Station that will now cost more than the figure included in the Town Code ($20,000) above which 
the competitive bidding process is required. 
 
The Fire Department sought proposals to complete HVAC work at Fire Station #1 (Company #1) that 
involved installation of three ductless split heat pumps in the Chief’s Office, the Server Room and the 
Meeting Room.  Costs for those proposals were: Caso’s - $20,136; Tech Unlimited - $18,600 and T&S - 
$14,350.  This original purchase alone would meet the terms of the purchasing ordinance and would not 
need Council approval.  However, during final review of the work and prior to contracting for the 
project, it was determined that the existing air conditioning unit in the Recreation Room of Company #1 
was damaged beyond repair and needed to be replaced.  This work was added to the intended project 
and a price was received from T&S in the amount of $7,550.  At this point, the HVAC related work at 
Company #1 had risen to a total of $21,900; above the Code threshold. 
 
In the interest of a conservative reading of the Purchasing Ordinance, I would ask the Council to review 
the overall purchase of HVAC improvements at Company #1 in the amount of $21,900 and consider 
waiving the competitive bidding process.  Three quotations were received for the original scope of work, 
which would not have triggered the bidding requirements.  Additional identical work was identified as 
needing to be done and, because it is being looked at as one project, the total cost has exceeded the 
bidding requirements.  Rather than expending the time and staff resources to undertake a formal 
competitive bidding process, the Council is asked to waive that  process in favor of allowing the work to 
be performed by the company that offered the lowest original quotation. 
 
As a reminder, the Code requires 3/4 of the elected members of Council to approve such waiver.  The 
recommended action for the Council if they wish to approve is to indicate reasons why doing so is in the 
best interest of the community, perhaps as discussed above, and adopt a motion to  waive competitive 
bidding for HVAC improvements at Fire Station #1 including the Chief’s Office, Server Room, Meeting 
Room and Recreation Room. 
 
Again, Department representatives will be available at the meeting to answer questions. 
 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: January 7, 2021 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 1/12/2021 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Proclamation Honoring Retired Police Sergeant Paul Battista – At the end of last year, Sergeant 
Paul Battista retired from the Town’s Police Department after more than 25 years of service to the 
Community.  The Council is asked to honor his service to the Town via a Proclamation at this meeting. 

Recommended Action: Approve and extend the Proclamation honoring and thanking 
Sergeant Battista. 

7b Police Department General Order 5.5 Regarding Family Violence – Chief Woessner will present 
this annual update to the existing policy regarding response to Family Violence calls.  The changes are 
driven by mandated changes from the POST Council and relate to preserving confidentiality of certain 
personal information about victims in records released to the public.  

Recommended Action: Approve updated General Order 5.5 regarding Family Violence. 

7c Resolution Regarding a Committee for the High School Athletic Fields Project – At its meeting 
in December,  the Council approved an agreement with Milone and MacBroom (now SLR) for 
professional services related to design, bidding and construction of the rehabilitation and replacement 
of the baseball field, tennis courts, track and limited work on the soccer field conditioned on Town 
Meeting approval of the High School Project Scope Amendment.  The Town Meeting approved the 
Scope Amendment on December 14.  Part of the approval authorizes the Town Council to establish a 
building committee to determine the particulars of the project(s) and implement the work.  The Council 
is asked to consider a  Resolution to establish this committee.  The proposed resolution utilizes the staff 
and Council member that managed the Professional Services RFP process plus two resident positions as 
the Committee.    The Council is asked to consider the Resolution and whether this committee structure 
is acceptable. 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 1/12/2021 
January 7, 2021 
Page 2 

Recommended Action: Approve the Resolution. 

9 New Business 
9a Authorization Related to CRF Applications – The Council is asked to approve a motion to 
officially authorize application to the federal and state Coronavirus relief funds for reimbursement of 
extraordinary expenses related to responding to the pandemic.  This is a technical requirement that was 
made known to East Hampton staff and other municipalities in December after the first round of 
applications had been made and funds received.  As such, the Council action is intended to retroactively 
and prospectively authorize the applications to cover the timeframes in the various programs.  The 
Town has received a total of $105,141 through these programs including FEMA in the amount of $3,031; 
the State Coronavirus Relief Fund in the amount of $5,269 and additional allocations from  the 
Coronavirus Relief Fund in the amount of $96,841. 

Recommended Action: Approve a motion that the Town Manager or designee be 
authorized to submit for expenditure reimbursements pursuant to the Federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief 
and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) and the State of Connecticut Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 
Municipal grant program and that this authorization be retroactively effective to March 1, 2020. 

9b Consideration of a Request to provide CRF funding to Chatham Health District – Chatham 
Health District has shouldered a significant portion of the COVID-19 response in the five municipalities 
that comprise the District partners.  For most of the last nine months, the staff and Director have largely 
focused on COVID-19 response activities, including providing public education, distributing PPE, 
reporting to PSAPs, conducting contact tracing, expanding access to community testing, clarifying and 
enforcing Executive Orders and DECD Sector Rules, supporting day cares and school districts, providing 
guidance to small businesses, and directly engaging in operations planning for municipal departments 
such as libraries, senior centers, transfer stations, and town halls. 

While the District has received some funding through DPH (including a recent Epidemiology and 
Laboratory Capacity grant), the use of those funds has been restricted to hiring one new part-time staff 
member, covering a portion of the salary for an environmental health specialist, and some limited 
overtime reimbursement. The new guidance from the Department of Treasury that is detailed in the 
attached OPM memo dated December 16, 2020 allows that District staff salary expenses meet the 
substantially dedicated test even though they were budgeted before March 27, 2020.  The work being 
performed is substantially different than originally anticipated.  The memo further indicates that Health 
Districts should work with their member municipalities to access these funds.  Access to some of the CRF 
funds will allow Chatham Health District as the Town’s health department to recoup expenses that were 
not directly allowed under the DPH funding, and will help assure that the District can continue to 
provide the level of services the communities require and deserve, which will be particularly important 
as vaccination is added to the long list of response activities.  

In keeping with the OPM goal to streamline this process and to assure equity across our municipalities, 
the District proposes that each member municipality allocate 20% of its total population-based CRF 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 1/12/2021 
January 7, 2021 
Page 3 

allotment as a one-time, mid-year additional allocation to Chatham Health District (see table below). 
This will allow the District to stabilize its budget from the COVID-19 disruption to the planned activities 
while leaving the majority of the allotment to other assist departments and activities.  

If the Council is willing to make this allocation, the formal process would commence through the Board 
of Finance to allocate these funds to the Town’s expense to Chatham Health District.  The final step 
would come back to the Council in February or so. 

Municipality 
Population-Based 
Allotment Formula % Request $ Request 

Colchester $126,769.00 20.0% $25,353.80 

East Haddam $62,617.00 20.0% $12,523.40 

East Hampton $96,841.00 20.0% $19,368.20 

Hebron $70,092.00 20.0% $14,018.40 

Marlborough $44,618.00 20.0% $8,923.60 

Portland $66,682.00 20.0% $13,336.40 
TOTAL $467,619.00 20.0% $93,523.80 

Recommended Action: Adopt a motion to indicate Council support for providing 
additional funds to Chatham Health District and directing staff to implement the process to allocate the 
funds.  

9c Consideration of a Request to waive competitive bidding and other purchasing ordinance 
requirements for an HVAC project at Fire Station #1 – The Fire Commission mistakenly planned to 
implement work that would require competitive bidding under the Town’s purchasing ordinance to add 
air conditioning and supplemental heat to Fire Station 1 via ductless split heat pumps but had not 
followed the bidding process.  Additionally, the Department may also be requesting authorization to 
award the work to a contractor that was not the lowest quote.  I will note that the Department received 
three quotations for this work with prices ranging from $18,600 (which would not trigger the bidding 
requirements) to $21,900.  Representatives of the Department will be at the meeting to discuss the 
project and the various requests.  If the Council agrees to the waiver, the appropriate notice will be 
published in the paper and the Council will be asked to take action at a subsequent meeting. 

Recommended Action: Consider the request and determine whether the waivers will 
be granted. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 

DC 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 12/8/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, December 8, 2020 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson, Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower and Kevin Reich and Town Manager David Cox. 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Markham, to adopt the agenda as written. 

Voted (7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Regular Meeting of November 24, 2020 as written.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Presentations 

Presentation Regarding the Town’s Pavement Evaluation and Management Tool 

Public Works Director Matt Walsh and Tony Garro from BETA provided an overview of a Pavement 

Management Program.  The Town purchased a software tool and system to evaluate the condition 

of the Town’s road system.  This program assists in developing a long-range plan for managing the 

roads. A copy of the presentation document will be included with the minutes filed in the Town 

Clerk’s Office. 

Bids & Contracts 

Contract Award for Professional Services for High School Athletic Fields 

A Request for Proposals for design assistance related to the proposed replacement and rehabilitation 

of the baseball field, tennis courts, track and soccer field at the High School was issued in October.  

The Town received 14 proposals.  The committee reviewed all proposals and interviewed three 

firms.  The recommended firm is Milone and MacBroom with an anticipated fee of $70,500 plus 

direct reimbursable expenses estimated at $2,000.   

The topic for additional funding for these projects is the subject of the Town Meeting on Monday, 

December 14,  In order to move ahead with the project if the funding plan is approved at Town 

Meeting, the Council is asked to approve an agreement with Milone and MacBroom conditioned on 

Town Meeting approval of the High School Project Scope Amendment. 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve an agreement with Milone 

& MacBroom for the High School Athletic Fields Project pursuant to the firm’s proposal and 

conditioned on the Town Meeting determination.  Voted (7-0) 

Agenda Item 3a



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 12/8/2020 Minutes 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

None 

Continued Business 

None 

New Business 

Consideration of a Motion to Amend the Purchase and Sale Agreement Related to Purchase 

of the Christopher Pond Property 

The Town entered into an agreement with the ownership of the Christopher Road property on which 

the Christopher Pond is located that provided for the purchase of the property upon the Town 

receiving a grant for the purchase and completion of the Town Meeting approval process thereafter.  

The State has delayed announcing whether the Town will receive the grant.  The owners have agreed 

to the delay for the sale through June 30, 2021 but a payment for the rest of the year’s taxes would 

be made by the Town.  The payment would be approximately $1,500.00.  The Council is asked to 

authorize an amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement that extends the action deadlines for 

Town Meeting approval. 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Reich, to authorize the Town Manager to 

execute an amendment to the Purchase and Sale Agreement for the Christopher Pond property 

through June 30, 2021 with a payment for taxes due up to $1,500.00.  Voted (7-0) 

Town Manager Report 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the Town Manager’s Report, which will be included with the 

minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  

Appointments 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to reappoint Wesley Jenks to the 

Conservation-Lake Commission.  Voted (7-0) 

Tax Refunds 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Ms. Moore, to approve tax refunds in the amount 

of $1,284.67.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement 

None 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to adjourn the meeting at 7:37pm.  

Voted (7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



Town Council Special Meeting 1 12/17/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Special Meeting 

Thursday, December 17, 2020 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Barbara Moore 

and Kevin Reich, Town Manager David Cox and Labor Attorney Nicholas Grello 

Not Present:  Tim Feegel, Derek Johnson and Mark Philhower 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. via Zoom. 

Consideration of an Agreement Between the Town of East Hampton and East Hampton Police 

Union, Local #2407, Council 4, AFSCME, AFL-CIO for July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2023  

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Markham, to approve the Agreement Between 

the Town of East Hampton and East Hampton Police Union, Local #2407, Council 4, AFSCME, AFL-

CIO for July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2023.  Voted (4-0) 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adjourn the meeting at 5:40 p.m.  

Voted (4-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 

Agenda Item 3b



Agenda Item 7b







































































DRAFT – 1/7/2021 

RESOLUTION OF THE EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL 

A Resolution Establishing The High School Athletic Fields Building Committee 

WHEREAS, the Town Meeting of the Town of East Hampton adopted a Resolution modifying 
the scope of the 2013 High School Renovation, Improvements and Additions Project to 
specifically add replacement of the tennis court surface and synthetic track surface, correction of 
drainage issues on the soccer field, correction of water, drainage, grading issues and 
implementation of irrigation and grass replacement on the baseball field and other related work 
and improvements to the original project, and 

WHEREAS, the resolution adopted by the Town Meeting authorized the Town Council to 
establish a building committee to determine scope and particulars of and implement the project 
to improve the athletic fields as described in the Resolution, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has awarded a contract for professional services to support this 
project and it desires to utilize a building committee to perform the aforementioned work on the 
project. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED; the Town Council hereby creates the High School 
Athletic Fields Building Committee with seven (7) total members whose general charge shall be 
to develop plans for the proposed projects as outlined in the aforementioned modifying 
Resolution, to issue one or more RFP for the construction of the improvements and to evaluate 
the results of the RFP, make a recommendation to the Town Council for award of the High 
School Athletic Fields Project and to oversee the project to completion. 

Membership shall be appointed by the Town Council with a term that will terminate upon 
completion and acceptance of the project or the cancellation of the  project by the Council. The 
committee shall comprise seven (7) members to include a member of the Town Council, the 
Town Manager, the Parks and Recreation Director, the Facilities Director, the High School 
Athletic Director and two (2) additional members of the public who demonstrate knowledge or 
experience deemed beneficial to the execution of  the project.  

Ex officio members of the committee will include the Finance Director, a member of the Board 
of Finance, the Superintendent of Schools and a member of the Board of Education. Ex officio 
members will have full rights to participate in the meeting but will not have a vote. The Town 
Manager will budget for and supply staff for the committee to take notes and minutes of 
committee meetings. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The Town Council has created the High School Athletic Fields 
Building Committee with the express intent to: 

1. Develop final project scope within the funding available utilizing input from the public and
other stakeholders;

2. Develop a formal Request for Proposal(RFP) for construction;
3. Issue, receive and review responses to the RFP;

Agenda Item 7c



DRAFT – 1/7/2021 

4. Recommend a contract for award by the Town Council;  
5. If approved, implement plans consistent with public approval through appropriate agents and 

Town inspectors; 
6. Examine and approve all payments in connection with the construction of such project with 

the advice of the project architect; 
7. Analyze and approve any change orders in the approved plans for such project within the 

limits of the total project appropriations with the express intent of completing the project on 
time and under budget while maintaining the original intent of the approved project; 

8. Approve and accept the completed project subject to the advice of the project architect and 
the town’s inspectors; 

9. Report to the Town Council at least quarterly on implementation progress. 
 
 
The High School Athletic Fields Building Committee created by this resolution shall cease and 
its membership be terminated without further action of the Town Council once the assigned 
project has been completed and turned over to the Town and Board of Education; provided, 
having that any and all insurance coverage applicable to the building committee and its members 
shall continue in accordance with the Town of East Hampton standard practices and policies. 
 
Approved this 12th day of January, 2021.  
 
 
TOWN COUNCIL                                                            ATTEST 
 
___________________________________                     ________________________________ 
James Brown, Chairperson                                                Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk 



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

S T A T E  O F  C O N N E C T I C U T
OFFICE OF POLICY AND MANAGEMENT 

Intergovernmental Policy and Planning Division 

To: Municipal Chief Executive Officials 
Municipal CRF Program COVID Contacts  
Superintendents of Schools   
Directors of Regional Councils of Governments 
DEMHS Region Coordinators    

From: Melissa N. McCaw, Secretary 
Konstantinos Diamantis, Deputy Secretary 

Date:  December 16, 2020 

RE: Municipal Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Program 
July 1 – December 30, 2020 Claim Period  

To date the Office of Policy and Management (OPM) has reimbursed municipalities 
for all reported claims through June 30, 2020 for a total of approximately $14.5 million 
from the Municipal Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) Program. Notably the actual 
incurred expenses through June 30th were significantly lower than municipalities 
originally estimated. Connecticut’s Municipal CRF Program originally was 
structured to provide funds on a reimbursement basis after the processing of FEMA 
claims. Due to the time delays in FEMA claims processing, and to maximize support 
to our municipalities, OPM will be immediately providing a direct $45.5 million 
allocation of the Municipal CRF Program funds to support municipalities costs for 
the period July 1 – December 30, 2020.    

Please note: the eligible uses of this funding, which are detailed further in this 
communication, have been expanded to include public health and safety personnel 
costs.  

Testing has been critical to slow the spread of coronavirus and mitigate its threat to 
public health, particularly for the most at-risk populations and our educational 
system. Therefore $15 million of the $75 million Municipal CRF Program allocation 
has been reserved to expand regional testing opportunities for teachers and staff to 
mitigate this expense for LEA’s and municipalities and provide increased support for 
safe operations of our schools. 

Agenda Item 9b



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

In summary, the Municipal CRF Program funds of $75 million will be distributed as 
follows: 
 

• Reimbursed Claims through June 30, 2020 - $14.5 million 
• Final allocation with expanded usage - $45.5 million 
• Regional testing opportunities for municipal teachers and staff - $15 million 

 
The remaining Municipal CRF funds of $45,498,170 will be allotted based on the 
population formula below.  A town by town allotment listing is attached.  

• 33% population density  
• 33% population / Adjusted Equalized Net Grand List per Capita  
• 34% population  

 
Funding has been provided to all 169 municipalities. Health Districts, Special Tax 
Districts and Fire Districts need to work through their municipality for claiming any 
reimbursements against their Municipal CRF Program allotment.   
 
Please refer to these website links for additional information on CRF:   

• Coronavirus Relief Fund Overview  
• Municipal CRF Program   

 
Eligible Uses 
Funding is being provided to cover the following:  
 
COVID eligible expenses: 

• Under federal law, eligible uses must meet three conditions. They must be: 
o “Necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency 

with respect to…COVID–19” 
 Funds may not be used to substitute for lost revenue 

o Not budgeted as of March 27, 2020 when the CARES Act was enacted 
 May not supplant state or municipal spending 

o Incurred on or after March 1, 2020, through December 30, 2020 
 

• Please refer to previous documentation on eligible expenses at: 
https://portal.ct.gov/OPM/Coronavirus/Coronavirus-Relief-
Fund/Municipal-CRF-Program 

 
Public health and public safety personnel costs  
Guidance from Department of Treasury:  

• In recognition of the particular importance of public health and public safety 
workers to State, local, and tribal government responses to the public health 
emergency, Treasury has provided, as an administrative accommodation, that 
a State, local, or tribal government may presume that public health and public 
safety employees meet the substantially dedicated test, unless the chief 

https://portal.ct.gov/OPM/Coronavirus/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund/CRF-Overview
https://portal.ct.gov/OPM/Coronavirus/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund/Municipal-CRF-Program
https://portal.ct.gov/OPM/Coronavirus/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund/Municipal-CRF-Program
https://portal.ct.gov/OPM/Coronavirus/Coronavirus-Relief-Fund/Municipal-CRF-Program
David
Highlight



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

executive (or equivalent) of the relevant government determines that specific 
circumstances indicate otherwise. This means that, if this presumption 
applies, work performed by such employees is considered to be a substantially 
different use than accounted for in the most recently approved budget as of 
March 27, 2020. All costs of such employees may be covered using payments 
from the Fund for services provided during the period that begins on March 
1, 2020, and ends on December 30, 2020.  

 
• In response to questions regarding which employees are within the scope of 

this accommodation, Treasury is supplementing this guidance to clarify that 
public safety employees would include police officers (including state police 
officers), sheriffs and deputy sheriffs, firefighters, emergency medical 
responders, correctional and detention officers, and those who directly 
support such employees such as dispatchers and supervisory personnel. 
Public health employees would include employees involved in providing 
medical and other health services to patients and supervisory personnel, 
including medical staff assigned to schools, prisons, and other such 
institutions, and other support services essential for patient care (e.g., 
laboratory technicians) as well as employees of public health departments 
directly engaged in matters related to public health and related supervisory 
personnel. 
 

• The guidance provides that funding may be used to meet payroll expenses for 
public safety, public health, health care, human services, and similar 
employees whose services are substantially dedicated to mitigating or 
responding to the COVID-19 public health emergency. May Fund payments 
be used to cover such an employee’s entire payroll cost or just the portion of 
time spent on mitigating or responding to the COVID-19 public health 
emergency?  
 
As a matter of administrative convenience, the entire payroll cost of an 
employee whose time is substantially dedicated to mitigating or responding 
to the COVID-19 public health emergency is eligible, provided that such 
payroll costs are incurred by December 30, 2020. An employer may also track 
time spent by employees related to COVID-19 and apply Fund payments on 
that basis but would need to do so consistently within the relevant agency or 
department. 

 
Testing:  

• Through the state's Community Testing Program, all residents have robust 
access to no-cost COVID-19 testing through multiple hospital, community 
health center and other community pop-up sites.  Turn-around-time for 
results through this program is averaging 72 hours or under.  Some 
providers may recommend appointments or pre-registration to facilitate 



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

expedited testing.  State sponsored sites may be accessed via 
www.ct.gov/prioritytesting.  
 

• The state is working with its contracted partners to provide priority access and 
extended hours for educators, school staff, and other critical workforce as 
needed.  More information will be forthcoming in the coming weeks on this 
effort.  
 

• CT DPH currently recommends the use of mitigation efforts to prevent 
COVID-19 transmission in schools.  In addition, BinaxNOW rapid antigen 
tests are available at no cost to school districts and other organizations.  This 
antigen test is generally for symptomatic individuals only; schools must also 
have appropriate staff, infection control measures and other measures in place 
to administer these tests on site.  To date, many of our state's school districts 
and school based clinics have utilized these tests for symptomatic staff or 
students. 
 

Enforcement of Executive Orders:  
• As noted above, this funding can be used broadly to support public health and 

safety personnel and fringe costs and be substantially dedicated to support the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, thereby providing budget relief to 
support enforcement.  
 

• Sector Rule enforcement is outlined in Governor Lamont’s Executive Orders 
7PP (issued 5/18/2020 authority for business closure), 9B (issued on 
9/15/2020 authority for issuing fines) and 9N (issued on 11/24/2020 
authority to issue $10,000 Civil Penalties) allow local officials the ability to 
enforcement Sector Rules.  Work to enforce the Sector Rules can be 
implemented by a variety of local officials including local health officials, local 
police departments, municipal designees, and other municipal officials.  Sector 
Rule enforcement work can be supported by this funding. 

 
• DPH along with DECD and DEMHS presented three webinars to educate local 

officials on Sector Rule enforcement.  A Sector Rule enforcement toolbox was 
presented focused on local team building to practice progressive discipline to 
include items such as education, written warnings, business closure, liquor 
license summary suspension, consent orders, infraction ticketing, and $10,000 
civil penalty.  Further, the State recently enacted an Enforcement Task Force 
including DPH, DECD, DCP, DEMHS, and Local Health Directors to focus on 
sharing guidance and best practices. 
 

 
 
 

http://www.ct.gov/prioritytesting


450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

Disbursement of Funds  
To streamline the process, municipalities will need to access the OPM Portal and 
complete a simple certification process.  There will be no upload of transactional 
detail or FEMA acceptance letter for this claim period.  
 
Municipalities, through their COVID Portal contact, will complete the web-based 
reimbursement and certification process.  Instructions will be sent separately. Claims 
must be submitted no later than 5:00 PM Friday, December 18, 2020.   Once OPM has 
reviewed and verified the certification, payment will be processed approximately 
within one week.  
 
Audit Provisions and Documentation  
Federal Coronavirus Relief Fund expenditures are subject to Single Audit by an 
Inspector General within the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Documenting that 
costs were eligible uses are essential to managing compliance risk and to minimizing 
the possibility that the costs are deemed ineligible, thereby requiring that the 
municipality and the state may need to return funds to the federal government. 
 
We ask that you document costs clearly with respect to the date and nature of the 
expense incurred so that together we can best manage resources in the interests of 
the residents of Connecticut. In general, you should document expenses with the 
same specificity as for FEMA reimbursements.  
 
For questions and additional information on the Municipal CRF Program, please 
contact Acting Undersecretary Martin Heft at martin.heft@ct.gov or 860.418.6355.  
 
Thank you for your continued cooperation as we work together to protect the 
interests of all our residents. 
  

mailto:martin.heft@ct.gov


450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

CODE MUNICIPALITY 
 CRF 

POPULATION 
FORMULA  

TOTAL 
MUNICIPAL 

CRF AMOUNT  
6.30 CLAIM 

AND 
FORMULA 

1 Andover  $        24,648.00   $        31,419.64  
2 Ansonia  $      330,670.00   $      376,258.68  
3 Ashford  $        34,764.00   $        72,487.98  
4 Avon  $      121,355.00   $      140,097.56  
5 Barkhamsted  $        24,506.00   $        52,165.00  
6 Beacon Falls  $        53,936.00   $        70,768.30  
7 Berlin  $      154,817.00   $      287,019.64  
8 Bethany  $        35,450.00   $        60,475.03  
9 Bethel  $      167,447.00   $      225,818.26  
10 Bethlehem  $        22,858.00   $        29,535.17  
11 Bloomfield  $      171,292.00   $      212,353.26  
12 Bolton  $        34,614.00   $        52,572.00  
13 Bozrah  $        18,633.00   $        19,476.46  
14 Branford  $      228,413.00   $      310,998.40  
15 Bridgeport  $   4,508,787.00   $   5,400,521.87  
16 Bridgewater  $          8,425.00   $          8,425.00  
17 Bristol  $      773,176.00   $      913,286.64  
18 Brookfield  $      123,484.00   $      341,200.32  
19 Brooklyn  $        80,933.00   $        83,433.00  
20 Burlington  $        65,952.00   $        87,903.49  
21 Canaan  $          5,727.00   $          5,727.00  
22 Canterbury  $        44,781.00   $        62,356.73  
23 Canton  $        69,337.00   $      131,558.54  
24 Chaplin  $        18,576.00   $        22,038.74  
25 Cheshire  $      234,298.00   $      362,872.26  
26 Chester  $        28,398.00   $        41,301.03  
27 Clinton  $        99,987.00   $      124,540.50  
28 Colchester  $      126,769.00   $      206,203.67  
29 Colebrook  $          9,714.00   $          9,714.00  
30 Columbia  $        39,851.00   $        75,931.72  
31 Cornwall  $          7,054.00   $          7,054.00  
32 Coventry  $        95,227.00   $      142,576.51  
33 Cromwell  $      118,432.00   $      150,113.65  
34 Danbury  $      962,177.00   $   1,157,937.31  



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

35 Darien  $      162,320.00   $      202,600.33  
36 Deep River  $        31,248.00   $        40,968.96  
37 Derby  $      182,874.00   $      210,926.81  
38 Durham  $        47,723.00   $        67,520.94  
39 Eastford  $        12,651.00   $        23,138.31  
40 East Granby  $        35,438.00   $        58,221.05  
41 East Haddam  $        62,617.00   $      100,122.44  
42 East Hampton  $        96,841.00   $      102,110.13  
43 East Hartford  $      811,063.00   $      955,606.95  
44 East Haven  $      362,955.00   $      424,577.53  
45 East Lyme  $      132,393.00   $      169,188.11  
46 Easton  $        42,676.00   $        44,902.61  
47 East Windsor  $        93,592.00   $      175,090.36  
48 Ellington  $      126,835.00   $      139,102.70  
49 Enfield  $      507,240.00   $      507,240.00  
50 Essex  $        43,144.00   $        54,380.94  
51 Fairfield  $      546,009.00   $      673,537.48  
52 Farmington  $      179,547.00   $      193,306.03  
53 Franklin  $        12,164.00   $        12,164.00  
54 Glastonbury  $      234,504.00   $      337,250.60  
55 Goshen  $        16,136.00   $        31,039.48  
56 Granby  $        78,147.00   $      112,277.31  
57 Greenwich  $      423,222.00   $      423,222.00  
58 Griswold  $      118,441.00   $      120,311.00  
59 Groton  $      367,847.00   $      402,746.57  
60 Guilford  $      139,226.00   $      237,885.73  
61 Haddam  $        53,324.00   $        62,024.00  
62 Hamden  $      719,130.00   $      753,522.79  
63 Hampton  $        14,194.00   $        16,343.02  
64 Hartford  $   3,689,292.00   $   4,837,338.66  
65 Hartland  $        15,314.00   $        15,314.00  
66 Harwinton  $        36,860.00   $        52,901.20  
67 Hebron  $        70,092.00   $        82,324.62  
68 Kent  $        15,688.00   $        26,254.34  
69 Killingly  $      163,781.00   $      177,516.36  
70 Killingworth  $        41,150.00   $        54,558.60  
71 Lebanon  $        52,956.00   $      108,793.44  
72 Ledyard  $      120,186.00   $      156,628.98  
73 Lisbon  $        32,164.00   $        37,567.02  
74 Litchfield  $        51,052.00   $        62,307.65  
75 Lyme  $        12,597.00   $        18,730.31  

David
Highlight



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

76 Madison  $      113,273.00   $      378,297.49  
77 Manchester  $      715,196.00   $      829,741.10  
78 Mansfield  $      293,080.00   $      414,849.67  
79 Marlborough  $        44,618.00   $        78,108.18  
80 Meriden  $      876,321.00   $   1,031,535.36  
81 Middlebury  $        52,077.00   $        61,269.00  
82 Middlefield  $        30,971.00   $        39,471.00  
83 Middletown  $      459,742.00   $      472,131.40  
84 Milford  $      569,259.00   $      955,051.07  
85 Monroe  $      142,336.00   $      178,394.50  
86 Montville  $      184,778.00   $      235,434.01  
87 Morris  $        13,736.00   $        14,834.24  
88 Naugatuck  $      414,702.00   $      504,490.37  
89 New Britain  $   1,911,462.00   $   2,083,279.52  
90 New Canaan  $      121,734.00   $      317,571.62  
91 New Fairfield  $        99,826.00   $      114,393.82  
92 New Hartford  $        47,508.00   $        47,508.00  
93 New Haven  $   3,120,837.00   $   3,198,904.90  
94 Newington  $      338,611.00   $      342,825.46  
95 New London  $      599,267.00   $      840,144.49  
96 New Milford  $      199,836.00   $      272,327.90  
97 Newtown  $      188,713.00   $      419,165.51  
98 Norfolk  $          9,462.00   $          9,462.00  
99 North Branford  $      110,877.00   $      145,257.46  
100 North Canaan  $        25,740.00   $        34,387.53  
101 North Haven  $      194,777.00   $      248,645.72  
102 North Stonington  $        37,728.00   $        56,240.48  
103 Norwalk  $   1,121,736.00   $   1,731,443.17  
104 Norwich  $      545,972.00   $      573,081.05  
105 Old Lyme  $        42,557.00   $        42,557.00  
106 Old Saybrook  $        64,377.00   $      229,749.19  
107 Orange  $        97,395.00   $        97,395.00  
108 Oxford  $        94,687.00   $        94,687.00  
109 Plainfield  $      157,317.00   $      163,317.00  
110 Plainville  $      200,192.00   $      261,533.06  
111 Plymouth  $      115,574.00   $      163,120.32  
112 Pomfret  $        29,544.00   $        36,146.46  
113 Portland  $        66,682.00   $        85,766.65  
114 Preston  $        36,759.00   $      149,041.61  
115 Prospect  $        80,243.00   $        89,126.18  
116 Putnam  $        95,334.00   $      111,599.10  



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

117 Redding  $        50,478.00   $        57,478.00  
118 Ridgefield  $      153,659.00   $      558,993.72  
119 Rocky Hill  $      180,612.00   $      205,204.05  
120 Roxbury  $        10,629.00   $        23,656.91  
121 Salem  $        28,237.00   $        44,888.03  
122 Salisbury  $        16,758.00   $        16,758.00  
123 Scotland  $        14,747.00   $        23,234.33  
124 Seymour  $      165,736.00   $      209,598.96  
125 Sharon  $        12,815.00   $        12,815.00  
126 Shelton  $      350,621.00   $      359,929.21  
127 Sherman  $        18,726.00   $        19,196.56  
128 Simsbury  $      181,098.00   $      207,901.52  
129 Somers  $        92,385.00   $      110,426.24  
130 Southbury  $      139,762.00   $      139,762.00  
131 Southington  $      396,718.00   $      528,257.03  
132 South Windsor  $      205,974.00   $      533,149.32  
133 Sprague  $        28,060.00   $        71,447.23  
134 Stafford  $      109,759.00   $      118,398.94  
135 Stamford  $   1,488,433.00   $   1,634,335.99  
136 Sterling  $        37,774.00   $        37,774.00  
137 Stonington  $      117,943.00   $      204,857.06  
138 Stratford  $      653,791.00   $      885,207.66  
139 Suffield  $      117,343.00   $      197,835.19  
140 Thomaston  $        73,567.00   $        80,225.52  
141 Thompson  $        82,283.00   $        92,087.94  
142 Tolland  $      107,013.00   $      135,670.12  
143 Torrington  $      396,229.00   $      528,508.48  
144 Trumbull  $      308,163.00   $      462,097.05  
145 Union  $          4,806.00   $          6,323.49  
146 Vernon  $      344,225.00   $      417,611.21  
147 Voluntown  $        20,807.00   $        35,199.00  
148 Wallingford  $      395,309.00   $      627,624.79  
149 Warren  $          7,244.00   $        12,319.10  
150 Washington  $        16,217.00   $        43,008.13  
151 Waterbury  $   2,534,274.00   $   4,875,633.01  
152 Waterford  $      126,003.00   $      232,002.88  
153 Watertown  $      185,039.00   $      225,276.60  
154 Westbrook  $        40,669.00   $      280,104.87  
155 West Hartford  $      701,978.00   $   1,009,406.91  
156 West Haven  $   1,150,257.00   $   1,150,257.00  
157 Weston  $        57,498.00   $        88,411.89  



450 Capitol Avenue Hartford, Connecticut 06106-1379 
www.portal.ct.gov/opm 

158 Westport  $      196,354.00   $      325,128.72 
159 Wethersfield  $      284,373.00   $      346,911.82 
160 Willington  $        46,324.00   $        65,364.19 
161 Wilton  $      108,440.00   $      324,692.48 
162 Winchester  $      101,602.00   $      127,488.10 
163 Windham  $      484,350.00   $      628,238.42 
164 Windsor  $      241,114.00   $      343,916.79 
165 Windsor Locks  $      119,042.00   $      138,756.59 
166 Wolcott  $      153,423.00   $      178,372.21 
167 Woodbridge  $        56,702.00   $      126,800.60 
168 Woodbury  $        61,800.00   $        95,513.31 
169 Woodstock  $        57,050.00   $        85,953.18 

TOTALS  $ 45,498,170.00   $ 59,999,998.66 



Caso’s HVAC, LLC 
Heating/Cooling/Installation/Service 

Ct License # S1-394141 
East Hampton, Ct 06424 

Telephone/Fax #860-267-5851 

PROPOSAL 

Submitted to:  East Hampton Fire Department             Date of proposal: 9/21/2020 
Barton hill rd 
East Hampton ,Ct    06424            Job: Barton Hill Co.1 

Installation of Ductless Heat pumps 

• 3 -Mitsubishi Ductless split systems

• 1- Mitsubishi M# MXZ-8C60NA2 outdoor Heat pump

• 1- Mitsubishi Branch Box M# PAC-MKA32BC (located above ceiling near rear of
bld)

• 1- Mitsubishi indoor wall unit M# MSZ-D36NA (Meeting room)

• 2-Mitsubishi indoor wall unit M# MSZ-GL12NA (server room & chiefs office)

• Outdoor unit Rear of building set on stand and a pad

• Cover with refrigeration and drain with line hide

• 3 condensate pumps Drain to exterior

• Line set and drains will run above ceiling

• Pressure test with nitrogen Start system and adjust as needed

• All manufacturers warranties apply

• 1 year labor warranty, electrical not included

Total Cost: $20,136.00  No Tax inc 

PAYMENT: 
50% Deposit due to start job,25% upon equipment arrival,  remaining due upon completion. 

NOTE: This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted within 10 days 

COLLECTION COST: Buyer agrees to pay the seller all collection costs including attorney’s fees, court cost and other 
costs involved in the collection of past due accounts. You may cancel this transaction at anytime prior to midnight of the 
third day after the date of acceptance. 

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROPOSAL: The above price, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby 
accepted. You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. 

Date of acceptance:_________________ Signature:___________________________ 

Agenda Item 9c







T & S HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING LLC.
7 BEL AIRE TERRACE
PORTLAND, CT. 06480

(860) 342-1506
LIC. # S1 390378

CUSTOMER : East Hampton Fire Department October 15, 2020
JOB : 3 Barton Hill Road , East Hampton Ct. 06424

WE HEREBY SUBMIT SPECIFICATIONS AND ESTIMATES FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 
THE FOLLOWING: MITSUBISHI DUCTLESS SPLIT HEAT PUMPS NON-HYPERHEAT TO PROVIDE
AIR CONDITIONING AND HEAT FOR REC. ROOM

EQUIPMENT: 
1- MITSUBISHI MUZ-GL18NA-U1 CONDENSER TO BE PLACED RIGHT SIDE OF

          BUILDING
1- MITSUBISHI MSZ-GL-MA-U1 WALL EVAPORATOR 18,000 BTU’S
1- WIRELESS MHK2 REMOTE CONTROL WALL MOUNTED THERMOSTAT (upgrade)
1- ASPEN CONDENSATE PUMPS
1- PAD/STAND
1- ¼ X 1/2X50’ ½” LINESET

   1- 50 FT .ROLL OF 14/4 STRANDED COMMUNICATING CABLE 
TO INCLUDE ALL NECESSARY BROWN TRIM DUCT
AND FITTINGS 

   INCLUDES MECHANICAL PERMIT
   T&S ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR STYRO STUCCO ON OUTSIDE OF 
  BUILDING DUE TO AGE/CONDITION OF MATERIAL 

PIPING: INCLUDES ALL NECESSARY PIPING AND FITTINGS TO COMPLETE INSTALLATION
ELECTRICAL: NOT INCLUDED, TO BE DONE BY CUSTOMER’S ELECTRICIAN

The price Installed: $ 7,550.00
   Sales Tax:$ 479.43

   TOTAL: $ 8,029.43

Note: If tax exempt a tax exempt certificate will have to be provided.

The Purchaser promises and agrees to pay for the equipment described above in full on the following terms and in accordance with 
The conditions set forth  on the reverse side of  this form.  In addition the purchaser promises and agrees to pay all collection, attorney
and  interest fees associated with  non-payment of this contract. Customer must register all equipment with manufacturer within 60 
Days completion of installation for all manufacturer warranties to apply. 

TERMS: $ 50% DUE UPON SIGNING OF CONTRACT 
$ REMAINING BALANCE DUE UPON COMPLETION OF JOB  

ACCEPTANCE DATE:______________________  PURCHASER:______________________________
East Hampton Fire Department 

SELLER: T & S HEATING AND AIRCONDITIONING  

  CONTRACT MUST BE SIGNED AND RETURNED WITH IN 
30 DAYS TO GUARANTEE PRICES 

1 of 2



T & S HEATING AND AIR CONDITIONING LLC.
7 BEL AIRE TERRACE
PORTLAND, CT. 06480

(860) 342-1506
LIC. # S1 390378

CUSTOMER : East Hampton Fire Department July 30, 2020
JOB : 3 Barton Hill Road , East Hampton Ct. 06424

WE HEREBY SUBMIT SPECIFICATIONS AND ESTIMATES FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 
THE FOLLOWING: MITSUBISHI DUCTLESS SPLIT HEAT PUMPS NON-HYPERHEAT TO PROVIDE
AIR CONDITIONING AND HEAT FOR CHIEF’S OFFICE , SERVER/STORAGE ROOM & MEETING 
ROOM

EQUIPMENT: 
1- MITSUBISHI MXZ-5C42NA2-U1 CONDENSER TO BE PLACED REAR OF

          BUILDING
1- MITSUBISHI MSZ-GL09NA-U1 WALL EVAPORATOR 9,000 BTU’S (Chief’s office)
1- MITSUBISHI MSZ-GL12NA-U1 WALL EVAPORATOR 12,000 BTU’S ( server/storage room)
1- MITSUBISHI MSZ-GL24NA-U1  WALL EVAPORATOR 24,000 BTU’S ( meeting room) 
3- WIRELESS MHK2 REMOTE CONTROL WALL MOUNTED THERMOSTAT (upgrade)
3- ASPEN CONDENSATE PUMPS
1- PAD/STAND
1- 3/8 X 5/8 X50’ ½” LINESET
2- ¼ x 3/8 x 50’ ½” LINESET 

   1- 250 FT .ROLL OF 14/4 STRANDED COMMUNICATING CABLE 
TO INCLUDE ALL NECESSARY BROWN TRIM DUCT
AND FITTINGS 

   INCLUDES MECHANICAL PERMIT

PIPING: INCLUDES ALL NECESSARY PIPING AND FITTINGS TO COMPLETE INSTALLATION
ELECTRICAL: NOT INCLUDED, TO BE DONE BY CUSTOMER’S ELECTRICIAN

The price Installed: $ 14,350.00
   Sales Tax:$ 911.23

TOTAL: $ 15,261.23

Note: If tax exempt a tax exempt certificate will have to be provided.

The Purchaser promises and agrees to pay for the equipment described above in full on the following terms and in accordance with 
The conditions set forth  on the reverse side of  this form.  In addition the purchaser promises and agrees to pay all collection, attorney
and  interest fees associated with  non-payment of this contract. Customer must register all equipment with manufacturer within 60 
Days completion of installation for all manufacturer warranties to apply. 

TERMS: $ 50% DUE UPON SIGNING OF CONTRACT 
$ REMAINING BALANCE DUE UPON COMPLETION OF JOB  

ACCEPTANCE DATE:______________________  PURCHASER:______________________________
East Hampton Fire Department 

SELLER: T & S HEATING AND AIRCONDITIONING  

  CONTRACT MUST BE SIGNED AND RETURNED WITH IN 
30 DAYS TO GUARANTEE PRICES 

2 of 2

Total Project Cost = $21,900



Agenda Item 12



BOARD AND COMMISSION SUMMARY 
NOVEMBER 2020 

Arts & Culture Commission 
The Arts & Culture Commission met on November 19 via Zoom.  Mrs. Sennett reported on 
the Town Hall Grand Opening noting it was a fabulous day and there is a large space for 
the East Hampton Art Association Gallery on the 2nd floor.  There is also a space for student 
artwork outside the Board of Education suite.  The Capstone grant and the community 
grants are still available.  The members approved the 2021 meeting dates. 

Board of Finance 
The Board of Finance met on November 16 via Zoom.  A motion was made and passed for 
modifications to the High School Renovations, Improvements and Additions project to 
include work on the baseball field, tennis court and track.  Mr. Jylkka reviewed revenues 
and expenditures.  There was discussion about meeting with the Board of Education 
regarding the budget. 

Brownfields Redevelopment Agency 
The Brownfields Redevelopment Agency met on November 23 via Zoom. The members 
received updates and discussed the topics of 1 Watrous Street and 13 Watrous 
Street/DECD STEAP Grant under continued business. There was a brief update for the 
new building at St Clements on the Oakum Dock side of the property. The members 
planned the information they want to use in the presentation to the Town Council. The 
2021 meeting dates were approved. 

Clean Energy Task Force 
No meeting 

Commission on Aging 
The Commission on Aging met on November 12 via Zoom.  Commission members received 
an update from Ms. Ewing on the activities being arranged by the Senior Center.  Dr. 
Rosenberg reached out to a colleague about the use of a list of emergency notifications for 
primary care and it was noted the primary care doctors don’t utilize such a list.  Eversource 
will take a form from a doctor to not turn off power for non-payment due to medical 
reasons but does not utilize that list during natural disaster situations.  The members 
approved the 2021 meeting dates. The commission would like to look into working closer 
with the Housing Authority. 

Conservation-Lake Commission 
The Conservation-Lake Commission met on November 12 via Zoom. A presentation from 
In-Situ explained the different equipment and tools from the company for lake data 
retrieval and analysis. Some of the tools are a water quality observation, water level 
measurement tool, data logger, and telemetry reader tool. The results are uploaded into a 
corresponding computer software. The members decided to do more research. There were 
four plan reviews for the members to discuss and approve. There was discussion for the 
budget, the watershed project/federal funding, the Lake Smart Program, and the Lake 
Level. The meeting dates for 2021 were approved. The members were told about a webinar 

Agenda Item 14a



on November 30 from 7-9 on how to deal with hazardous algae blooms. Mr. Carbonell will 
send an invite for the webinar to the members. 
 
Design Review Board 
The Design Review Board met on November 19 via Zoom.  Members reviewed a plan for 
signage at 100 Main Street for the new Gulf gas station.  The plan was rejected as the signs 
are not in conformance with the Village Center district and do not comply with the Zoning 
code.  Members approved the 2021 meeting dates. 
 
Economic Development Commission 
The Economic Development Commission met on November 17 via Zoom.  Members 
received an update on the East Hampton Eats campaign.  Members reviewed the Planning 
& Zoning minutes and home-based businesses were discussed.  It was noted there are no 
provisions in the code for home-based businesses and there is a need for a reasonable 
regulation.  The new business banner will go to Willow next.  The Belltown Spotlight on 
Business will go to CZ Equipment next.  Ideas for a project at the Main Street bridge was 
briefly discussed.  Members approved the 2021 meeting dates.  Town Council member 
Dean Markham commented that the EDC does not have a charge or policy direction and 
suggested they put something together. 
 
Ethics Commission 
No meeting  
 
Fire Commission 
The Fire Commission met on November 17 via Zoom. The company wants to renumber 
Engine 2-12 and it will cost $600. Both the Fire Marshal and Fire Chief reports were given. 
The members briefly discussed the topics of the dry hydrants follow up, the AC upgrade 
status, the software migration progress, and the background screening in-house process.  
 
Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency 
The Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency met on November 18 via Zoom. 
Continued Applications:  

A. IW-20-025:  Joseph Perko, 501 Moodus Road, to construct a 20’ x 45’ 2 story 
outbuilding within the Upland Review Area.  Map 15/Block 28A/Lot 1. Approved 

B. IW-20-026:  Steven Phillips, 16 Maplewood Dr., to install a 16’ x 32’ in ground pool 
within the Upland Review Area.  Map 19/Block 39A/Lot 10A-4.  Approved 

C. IW-20-027:  Robert B. Wallace, 4 Lakewood Rd., demolition of existing cottage 
within the Upland Review Area.  Map 03A/Block 44/Lot C-67.  Approved  

D. IW-20-028:  Bryson Hyte, 202 Lake Drive, to install an 18’x37’x29’ pool and to 
relocate and rebuild an existing retaining wall within the Upland Review Area.  Map 
09A/Block 70B/Lot 17A.  Approved  

E. IW-20-030:  Kevin Herrick, 49 Bay Rd., to restore existing stone wall by lake and 
install a new pervious paver patio and seat wall.  Map 09A/Block 70/Lot 33. 
Approved 

 



F. IW-20-031:  Tony Flannery, 101 Main St., clear brush, trees and stumps.  Add gravel 
and top with millings.  Remove UG fuel tank.  Install a wash bay for the existing 
recycling yard operation.  Work is within the upland review area.  Map 06A/Block 
57/Lot 2. Approved 

 
New Applications: 

A.  IW-20-032:  Aquarian Water Company of CT, 49 Lakewood Road, to add an addition 
to the existing water treatment facility.  Project is within the Upland Review Area.  
Map 03A/Block 44/Lot 23A. Deemed “As of Right Use” 

B. IW-20-033:  Joseph Ploszay, 39 Blue Heron, to construct a 676 sq. ft. IG pool within 
the Upland Review Area.  Map 24/Block 64/Lot 20-16. Continued to December 30, 
2020 Meeting 

  
Joint Facilities  
The Colchester –East Hampton Joint Facilities Board held a virtual Regular meeting on 
November 17. Roof repairs have started on the main building. Bids went out for the other 
accessory buildings. Estimates cost is approx. $211, 000.  Mr. Paggioli, Public Works 
Director for the Town of Colchester reported on the status of Colchester Main repair. An 
engineering firm has been chosen and the contract for design work is in the process of 
being finalizing. Odor control in Colchester and East Hampton is being mitigated as 
needed.  
 
Library Advisory Board 
The Library Advisory Board met on November 2 via Zoom.  Members discussed an 
Internet Safety Policy and a Circulation Policy.  They approved the 2021 meeting dates. 
 
The Library Advisory Board met again on November 23 via Zoom.  Members approved the 
Internet Safety Policy.  This policy is being presented to the Town Council for approval. 
 
Middle Haddam Historic District Commission 
The Middle Haddam Historic District Commission met on November 19 via Zoom.  The 
members reviewed an application for Cobalt Lodge to build a new one-story building on 
the property connecting to the main building. The existing house and garage on the 
property needs to be demolished to make way for and gain more space for the planned 
building. The members told the applicants that the demolition of the existing house and 
garage need to be a separate application to be approved. The only item that can be 
approved is the one-story building. The members did approve of the proposed building as 
long as the existing house and garage can be torn down. The minutes from September 2019 
and August 2020 were tabled for the next meeting. The 2021 meeting dates were approved 
by the members. The members also briefly discussed a new veterinary clinic coming to 
town and the area the business will be moving into.  
 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board met on December 1.  Board members received a 
presentation by GreenPlay and discussed the master plan.  Members approved the 2021 
meeting dates.  The Town Council approved the Memorial Bench Policy.  Members 
received an update on the Air Line Trail, program updates and the RFP for the baseball 
field, tennis court and track at the High School. 



 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
The Planning & Zoning Commission met on November 4 via Zoom. 
Public Hearings: 

A. Application PZC-20-018:  Atlantis Marketing, 157 Main St., 5 Colchester and 1 
Colchester Ave. for a zone change from R-2 to Commercial.  Map 07A/Block 56/Lot 
24, Map 07A/Block 56/Lot 21 and Map 07A/Block 56/Lot 22. Continued to 
December 2nd meeting 

B. Application PZC-20-022:  East Hampton Rotary Club Foundation, 45 Daly Rd., for a 
Special Permit for parks, playgrounds and public recreation Sec. 4.4.D.1.d - Map 
33/Block 87/Lot 3. Continued to December 2nd meeting.  

C. Application PZC-20-023:  JCG Properties, LLC., 9 Middle Haddam Rd., for a Zone 
Change from R2 to Commercial for approximately 5 acres to operate a veterinary 
clinic.  Map 01C/Block 9/Lot 5.  Continued to December 2nd meeting. 

D. Updates to Sec. 3.1 Lake Pocotopaug Protection Zone - Approved 
 

New Business:  
A. Whispering Woods Performance Bond Release Request - Approved 

 
Old Business: 

A. Discussion: Update Sign Regulation to Include PO/R Zone Sign Standards. 
Continued to December 2nd meeting. 

B. Discussion: Home Based Occupations - Continued to December 2nd meeting.     
C. Updates to the Official East Hampton Zoning Map – Continued to December 2nd 

meeting 
 
Town Facility Building Committee  
The Town Facility Building Committee met on November 5 via Zoom.  The members 
received the architect update, the construction manager update, and the OPM update. The 
members also discussed the final or closeout projects. The potential projects would be a 
carport with solar panels on top for the police department and the installation of a shed or 
a bigger garage for extra storage for tables, chairs, and other bigger items. There was 
discussion of the payment timing for the Newfield applications #21 and #22. It was 
decided to have the funds released from hold to pay the applications for Newfield. Three 
invoices were approved by the members. 
 
The Town Facility Building Committee met on November 19 via Zoom.  Members received 
an update from the OPM noting the audio visual still needs to be completed.  There was 
discussion about the water pressure issues in the restrooms.  Two change orders were 
approved, and one was rejected.  Members also approved Newfield Payment Application 
#23 at a reduced amount. 
 
Water Pollution Control Authority  
The Water Pollution Control Authority Board held a virtual Public Hearing meeting on 
November 3rd. A new budget report line item has been created specifically for Grinder 
Pumps. The addition of the line item allows for a clearer account of the moneys spent on 
grinder pump repairs and maintenance. Water shut off notices have been sent out to 
approx.  15 water customers.  The generators are in place at Barbara Ave. and Pine Trail 



pump stations with a projected finish for mid-December. The board continued discussion 
on the Sewer Connection fees as well as commercial meter accounts.   

Zoning Board of Appeals 
The Zoning Board of Appeals met on November 9 via Zoom. 
Public Hearing: 

A. Application ZBA-20-015, Kevin Herrick, 49 Bay Road, to reduce side setback 15’ to 12’ 
to construct a 4’ wide deck to allow for access and egress from the main floor.  Map 
09A/Block 70/Lot33.   Approved 



BOARD AND COMMISSION SUMMARY 
DECEMBER 2020 

Arts & Culture Commission 
No meeting 

Board of Finance 
The Board of Finance met on December 21 via Zoom.  The Regular Meeting calendar for 2021 
was unanimously approved.  It was discussed and decided that start times for 2022 FY Budget 
meetings will be moved to 6:30 in order to better accommodate board member’s schedules.  

Brownfields Redevelopment Agency 
The Brownfields Redevelopment Agency met on December 28 via Zoom.  The members 
welcomed a new member to the agency. There were brief discussions on 1 Watrous and 13 
Watrous. There was discussion regarding additional information and documents to add to 
the presentation for the Town Council. The presentation will be ready and should be on the 
Town Council’s agenda for their January 26 meeting.  

Clean Energy Task Force 
The Clean Energy Task Force met on December 1 via Zoom.  John Greeno, a former Clean 
Energy Task Force Chairman, joined the meeting to discuss what the other task forces in the 
state are doing for clean energy programs during the winter months. In Branford there is a 
heat smart program helping to heat people’s homes during the winter months. He also 
suggested the town join the Sustainable CT group to help bring more clean energy and 
sustainable energy programs to the town. It was decided that there will be a presentation 
from Sustainable CT during the January meeting. The members approved the 2021 meeting 
dates and nominated a new Chairperson and kept the existing Vice Chair. 

Commission on Aging 
The Commission on Aging met on December 10 via Zoom.  JoAnn Ewing provided an 
overview of online activities being arranged by the Senior Center.  The members will invite 
the Housing Authority Director to the January meeting to review any possible coordination 
between the Commission on Aging and the Housing Authority.  The Clean Energy Task Force 
has expressed an interest in meeting with the Commission regarding ways to help senior save 
money on energy needs. 

Conservation-Lake Commission 
The Conservation-Lake Commission met on December 10 via Zoom. The members reviewed 
a plan for a pool on a residential property.  It was approved as submitted since all precautions 
are being taken during the project. The members discussed the budget, the watershed 
projects/ federal funding, the advisory panel, the lake smart program, and the lake level. The 
members discussed the RFQ for Lake Limnologist. A list of bidding companies was sent to 
the members to review and discuss at the next meeting. The list will be narrowed down to a 
group of three. There won’t be any sort of monetary proposals sent in at this time, the 
members are only looking at the qualifications of the bidders. 



Design Review Board 
The Design Review Board met on December 17 via Zoom.  They reviewed a plan for a new 
sign at 42 West High Street.  The sign was approved noting the owner should check on the 
ADA compliance of the lettering.  They also reviewed an addition at 29 Middle Haddam Road.  
The plan was approved as submitted. 
 
Economic Development Commission 
The Economic Development Commission met on December 15 via Zoom.  The members 
discussed the closeout of the East Hampton Eats Campaign, possible projects and grants the 
commission could apply for, the business package promotion & tourism, reviewed the New 
Business Update/New Businesses with Planning & Zoning Approval/Review of P&Z Minutes, 
New Business Banner Locations, Belltown Spotlight on Business, and was presented with a 
possible project/event for the Air Line Trail bridge under Town Beautification. The project 
would be purchasing bells from participating business in the area of the bridge and attaching 
the bells to the bridge. The bells could have sayings or words written on them with paint pens 
to have them be custom to the person or family. This will help to have the bridge become a 
tourist spot in town. There will be more details and a presentation from Cici Bevin about the 
bells at the January meeting.  
 
Ethics Commission 
No meeting  
 
Fire Commission 
The Fire Commission met on December 14 via Zoom.  There were no bills to approve. The 
Fire Marshal and Fire Chief announced their reports. The members discussed the dry 
hydrants, the AC upgrade, the software migration, and the upcoming budget.  
 
Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency 
Continued Applications:  

A. IW-20-033:  Joseph Ploszay, 39 Blue Heron, to construct a 676 sq. ft. IG pool within 
the Upland Review Area. Map 24/Block 64/Lot 20-16 - Approved 

 
New Applications: 

A.  IW-20-034:  John Uliano, 29 Pocotopaug Dr., To construct a pool and 2 retaining 
walls within the Upland Review Area.  Map 25/Block 64/Lot 20A-1. Continued 

B. IW-20-035:  Edgewater Hill Enterprises, LLC., East High St., to construct Salt Pond 
Apartments (40 units); a phase of the Edgewater Hills Master Plan.  Map 10A/Block 
85/Lot5C. Continued 

C. IW-20-036:  Connecticut Contractors Group, LLC., Daniel Street, Subdivision.  Map 
13/Block 51/Lot 1. Public hearing set 

D. IW-20-039:  Donald Ballsieper, Navajo Trail, New home construction with the 
Upland Review Area.  Map 09A/Block 74/Lot 167. Continued 

E. IW-20-040: Cary L. Gagnon, 5 Boulder Road, to install bike trails and wooden 
bridges in Wetlands and Upland Review Area. Map 03A/ Block 44/ Lot 23F. 
Continued 

 
Joint Facilities  
No meeting  



Library Advisory Board 
The Library Advisory Board met on December 7 via Zoom.  The members discussed the draft 
2021/2022 operating budget.  They also discussed a revision to the Circulation Policy. 
 
Middle Haddam Historic District Commission 
The Middle Haddam Historic District Commission met on December 17 via Zoom.  The 
members reviewed a certificate of appropriateness to demo a one-story house and a multiple 
bay garage on the Cobalt Lodge property under public hearing. The members briefly 
discussed this application before approving the certificate as submitted. Under new business 
the members were informed of new residents on Knowles Road wishing to put in a circular 
driveway in place of their existing driveway. They were left with an application to fill out to 
come in front of the commission. 
 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board met on December 1.  A presentation was given by 
GreenPlay on the master plan.  Members approved the 2021 meeting dates.  Members 
received updates from the Air Line Trail subcommittee, updates on winter programming and 
the RFP for the baseball, tennis and track at the High School. 
 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
The Planning & Zoning Commission met on December 2 via Zoom.   
Public Hearing 

A. Application PZC-20-023:  JCG Properties, LLC., 9 Middle Haddam Rd., for a Zone 
Change from R2 to Commercial for approximately 5 acres to operate a veterinary clinic. 
Map 01C/Block 9/Lot 5.  Continued 

      
New Business  

A. Application PZC-20-024:  Paula Free, 249 West High St., for a special permit per Sec. 
8.4  Motor Fuel Filling Station for a proposed convenience store.  Map 06/Block 12/Lot 
1B. Continued 

B. Application PZC-20-025:  Z Incorporated / Cobalt Health Care, 29 Middle Haddam 
Rd., for a Special Permit to demo an existing commercial building and rebuild.  Map 
01C/Block 9/Lot 7.  Continued 

 
Town Facility Building Committee  
No meeting 
 
Water Pollution Control Authority  
The Water Pollution Control Authority Board held a virtual Public Hearing meeting on 
December 1. The WPCA received the (DOT) 2021 paving schedule which will affect 50 
manholes and 20 water valve boxes within RT 151, Skinner Street, Main Street and Summit 
Street. WPCA is waiting on clarification from DOT regarding any reimbursement of repairs 
for the subcontractors after paving is completed.  The Barbara Avenue and Pine Trail pump 
station generators are complete and up and running. The board continued discussion on the 
Sewer Connection fees as well as commercial meter accounts.   
  
Zoning Board of Appeals 
No meeting 




